
 

THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 

7 MAIN STREET - WHITINSVILLE, MA  01588 

August 14, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 6:30 PM 
REVISED 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

Presentation:  Proclamation presented to Brendan Hester  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. 1) July 13, 2023 [Special Meeting] 2) May 8, 2023 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING: B. 7:05 PM/V.E. Properties IX, LLC–Application for Underground Storage Tank License 

to store 5,000 gallons of propane (5–1,000 gal. tanks) on property located at 600 Commerce Drive, Whitinsville, 

MA [Eyepoint Pharmaceuticals]/Present: Paul DiLeo, DiLeo Gas & Vincent Osterman, Landowner 

 

III. APPOINTMENTS: C. By the Town Manager/Vote to affirm: 1) Jeffrey Mayer, Student Police 

Officer/Present: Police Chief, Timothy Labrie 2) Kayleigh Labrecque, Senior Library Assistant/Present: 

Rebecca Sasseville, Library Director 3) Bettyjean Bedrosian, Assistant Treasurer/Collector/Present: Julie Harris, 

Treasurer/Collector 4) Derek Perkins, Heavy Equipment Operator-Highway  

 

D. By the Board of Selectmen/Vote to Appoint: 1) Central Mass. Regional Planning Commission: 

a) Delegate and b) Alternate 2) Economic Development Committee [BOS Rep] 3) Green Energy Committee 

[BOS Rep] 4) Open Space & Recreation Plan Update Committee [BOS Rep] 5) Rainer Forst, Community 

Preservation Committee [Member at Large] 6) Muriel Emond, Economic Development Committee [Member at 

Large]/ Present: William Davis, Chairman 7) Carla Longpre, Disability Commission/Present: Bruce Frieswick, 

Chairman   

E. RESIGNATION: Michael Haslam, Playground and Recreation  

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

V. DECISIONS: 

F. Northbridge Elementary School Feasibility Study Recommendations/Vote to advertise RFP for 

Disposal/Present: David Eisen, Abacus Architects 

G. Open Sky Community Services, 50 Douglas Road [Valley Bag Toss event – Saturday, October 14, 2023 from 

12 PM – 5 PM (Rain date: October 15th) @ Community Plaza and the Whitin Mill]/Request for a one-day wine 

and malt license  

H. Armenian Apostolic Church, 315 Church Street 1) Annual Church Picnic event – Sunday, August 20, 2023 

from 12 PM – 6 PM/Request for a one-day wine and malt license 2) Surf and Turf night event – Thursday, 

September 14, 2023 from 5 PM to 9 PM/Request for a one-day all alcoholic license  

I. Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [May 17, 2023]/Vote to accept the recommendations 

J. Fall Annual Town Meeting [October 24, 2023] / Vote to place Selectmen’s articles on the Warrant 

K. Riverdale Cemetery Deed – Phyllis Kuik/Vote to approve the sale of Grave 7C, Hemlock Ave.  

L. Pine Grove Cemetery Deed – James and Lois Hassey/Vote to approve the sale of Lot No. 33, Fir Ave. 

M. RASU Jumbo Donuts Shop, LLC dba Jumbo Donuts, 1115 Providence Road, Whitinsville, MA 01588 – Anita 

Mathema, Mgr. [Transfer from The Donut Shop dba Jumbo Donuts- Chris Mitkonis, Mgr.] /Subject to 

departmental sign offs and payment of all monies owed to the town/Present: Anita Mathema, Mgr.  

 

VI. DISCUSSIONS 

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS   

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA 

X. CORRESPONDENCE 

 

1. XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 6:30 PM - Under M.G.L. c.30A, Sec. 21 #6 – To consider the purchase, exchange, 

lease or value of real estate, and M.G.L. c.30A, Sec. 21 #3 – to discuss strategy with respect to litigation. 

Town Clerk:  2 Hard copies □ 

Web: Post time-stamped copy □ 

 

 



1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

 

July 13, 2023 

 

A virtual meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Russ Collins at 6:30 PM, 

using Zoom Video Communication (Video Conferencing App). Board Members Present: Collins, Melia, 

Ampagoomian, Paulhus and Begin. Also Present: Adam D. Gaudette, Town Manager.   

 

Chairman Cannon read the following aloud: Pursuant to Governor Baker’s March 12, 2020 Order 

Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §18, and the Governor’s March 

15, 2020 Order concerning imposition on strict limitations on the number of people that may gather in one 

place, meetings of the Northbridge Board of Selectmen will be conducted via remote participation to the 

greatest extent possible.  No in-person attendance of members of the public will be permitted, but every 

effort will be made to ensure that the public can adequately access the proceedings as provided for in the 

Order. 

 

YEAR-END BUDGET TRANSFERS 

 

Mr. Gaudette advised that this special meeting was required in order that year-end budget transfers for the 

FY2023 Budget were conducted prior to July 15th. 

 

Mr. Gaudette requested the three (3) following transfers were necessary: 

 

1) Ambulance Department:  Transfer $10,710 from Salaries (Overtime) to Expenses (Repairs) for 

unexpected repairs to the ambulances and increased costs for medical supplies. 

 

2) Planning  Department:  Transfer $1,618 from Expenses (Professional Services) to Salaries (Salary 

& Wages) to meet the Compensation Schedule changes that went into effect January 1st. 

 
3) Fire Department:  Transfer $1,300 from Salaries (Temporary) to Expenses (Energy) for 

unexpected increased energy market costs. 

 

A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve of the three (3) transfers provided as necessary by 

Mr. Gaudette. Vote yes/Board Members Begin, Ampagoomian, Collins, Paulhus, and Melia.  

 

 

A motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Paulhus to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Board Members Begin. 

Ampagoomian, Collins, Paulhus, and Melia.  

 

Meeting Adjourned: 6:50 PM 

 

 

  

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Thomas Begin, Clerk  

/mjc 

A.1.



Board of Selectmen 

  July 13, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

2 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

July 13, 2023 

 
I. YEAR END TRANSFERS/Town Accountant Budget Transfer Forms – three 

-No documentation 

 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

 

May 8, 2023 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Collins at 7:00 PM, Northbridge 

Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Board Members Present: Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 

Selectman Ampagoomian was absent and it is duly noted. Also Present: Town Manager Adam D. 

Gaudette.  

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: March 13, 2023. A motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the 

March 13, 2023 meeting minutes as presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia 

and Paulhus. March 13, 2023 [Exec. Sess.]. A motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve but not 

release the March 13, 2023 [Exec. Sess.] minutes. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. March 27, 

2023. A motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the March 27, 2023 meeting minutes as 

presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. April 10, 2023. A 

motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the April 10, 2023 meeting minutes as presented with 

the readings omitted. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. May 2, 2023 [SATM]. A motion/Mr. 

Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the May 2, 2023 [SATM] meeting minutes as presented with the 

readings omitted. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING/None  

  

APPOINTMENTS: Playground & Recreation Commission/Vote to appoint: Michael Haslam [Eff. 

Immediately]. Mr. Dempsey noted that Mr. Haslam was unable to attend tonight’s meeting. That said, He 

requested the Selectmen to appoint Karen Rogers immediately and to appoint Michael Haslam effective 

7/1/23. The Board also discussed appointing Pascale Zayas to the Commission effective 7/1/23. Mr. 

Dempsey explained that they are waiting for her voter registration paperwork to be completed. A 

motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Paulhus to appoint Michael Haslam and Pascale Zayas to the Playground 

and Recreation Commission effective 7/1/23. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. Karen Rogers 

[Eff. 7/1/23]/Present: Mike Dempsey. Mr. Dempsey introduced Ms. Rogers and explained that she would 

fill the current vacancy and expressed that he was looking forward to having her join the Commission. Ms. 

Rogers added that she is excited about this opportunity and noted that she has volunteered for many 

communities over the years. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Begin to appoint Karen Rogers [Eff. 

Immediately] to the Playground and Recreation Committee. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus.    

 

CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

Blue Zone Integrated Fitness Studio, 102 Church Street/Request to use Memorial Park on Saturday, 

May 13, 2023 from 11 AM to 12 PM for a one-hour outdoor yoga class [Rain date: May 20, 

2023]/Present: Laura Polymeros. Ms. Polymeros, owner of Blue Zone Integrated Fitness Studio on 

Church Street, stated that she was asked by the group “Girls on the Run” if she would be interested in 

teaching a yoga class that would help raise funds. She explained that her studio is small and only fits about 

10 people so moving outdoors on the Common would allow a larger group to participate. A motion/Mr. 

Melia, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the above request to use Memorial Park on Saturday, May 13, 2023 

from 11 AM to 12 PM for a one-hour outdoor yoga class [Rain date: May 20, 2023]. Vote yes/Begin, 

Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 

   

Mandatory Water Restriction for non-essential outdoor water use beginning May 1, 2023 to 

September 30, 2023 during the hours of 9 AM to 5 PM. DPW Director Jamie Luchini explained that 

A.2.



Board of Selectmen 

  May 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

2 

there is a clause that limits daytime watering set forth by the Whitinsville Water Company. Terence 

McGlone, General Manager of Whitinsville Water Company, was present to discuss the permit. He 

explained that they pump water under a permit that was granted by the Massachusetts Department of 

Environmental Protection. The current permit was issued in February of 2010 for 20 years. The permit sets 

limits for how much they can pump daily and annually. Within that there are requirements for water 

conservation, which currently runs from May 1st to September 30th during the hour of 9 AM to 5 PM. During 

that time, they are required to enact a water ban of non-essential watering, which includes automatic 

sprinklers, washing cars and homes, unless it is for a business, livestock and farms. Another requirement is 

to use no more than 65 gallons a day per person and if that is exceeded the water restrictions are much 

harsher. If a drought is passed, then the Department of Environmental Protection has a right to limit the 

amount of water that they can pump. Mr. McGlone proposed a banner on the bills that are coming out from 

Whitinsville Water Company as well as the Town, to remind people of the water ban for non-essential 

watering and referencing them back to the website. Mr. Luchini added that this has been in the permit for 

the last thirteen years and in the last several years we have experienced droughts, so the DEP is trying to 

take proactive measures. Selectman Paulhus asked if this was something that has been in the permit but 

hasn’t really been enforced before this year. Mr. McGlone replied that he came on board as General 

Manager in June of last year, so he is not able to comment on what happened prior to that. He further 

expressed that it has been on their website but feels the enforcement of the ban has been lacking. Selectman 

Begin noted that when he first moved to town there was a water ban and his family was not aware of it until 

a neighbor mentioned it. He then asked what Whitinsville Water Company is doing to inform those new to 

town of the water restrictions and also asked about those that get electronic bills. Mr. McGlone stated they 

currently do not have a process for new customers, but felt it was a great idea that could be implemented. 

The bills that go out with the banner will go on hard copies of bills and electronic bills. Selectman Melia 

asked how we get the mandate eliminated and what caused this restriction to be a part of the permit. Mr. 

McGlone replied that the permit is a 20-year permit that will expire in the year 2030. Before it expires, they 

will have to go through the process of renewing the permit, so nothing will change until the permit is 

renewed. He further explained that with the growth going on in Town and the current limitations on the 

water withdrawal, he anticipates that they will go for an amendment or a new permit within the next couple 

of years. At that point, if they can demonstrate that they have adequate supplies and they are following the 

conservation measures it could be possible to get that restriction removed.  Selectman Melia suggested 

reaching out to our representative for assistance. He also pointed out that during that last several years 

people saw trailer trucks siphoning water out of Meadow Pond and transporting it elsewhere during a water 

ban. He asked if that would take place again. Mr. McGlone replied that his understanding is a number of 

years ago there was a sale of water directly from the ponds but it hasn’t taken place for the last 5 years or 

so. Mr. Luchini noted that there were trucks removing water out of the Riverdale Mills well, which is a 

private well, so they are allowed to do so. Selectman Collins expressed concern for the policing of this 

restriction. Mr. McGlone noted that he and Mr. Luchini have decided to meet and come up with a plan on 

how to implement this. The first line being education, informing the public as to the importance of the 

restriction. Second is developing some electronic means of monitoring through the water meters. And third 

will be partnering with the meter company they use to come up with an alert to those that are violating the 

restriction. Selectman Melia asked how many Whitinsville Water customers and Town customers there are. 

Mr. McGlone stated that he believes the Town has about 100 more customers than the Water Company. 

Mr. Luchini stated they are seeking a vote of the Board so they can send a note in the next billing cycle 

notifying customers of the restriction. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the banner on 

the next billing cycle to include a reminder about the Mandatory Water Restriction for non-essential outdoor 

water use beginning May 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 during the hours of 9 AM to 5 PM. Vote yes/Begin, 

Collins, Melia and Paulhus.  

 

2023 Junk Dealers License Renewal/Pedro Martel III DBA Junk in the Trunk – Vote to renew. A 

motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the 2023 Junk Dealers License Renewal/Pedro Martel 

III DBA Junk in the Trunk. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 



Board of Selectmen 

  May 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

3 

Upcoming Road Projects in Northbridge/Present: Jamie Luchini, DPW Director. Mr. Luchini reported 

that the Chapter 90 Funding came in level-funded at $665,000; $50,000 of which goes to the traffic 

markings. The remaining amount will go towards roads. He stated that the list can change quickly since 

roads can fail quickly. First on the list is Purgatory Road, sections of Main Street, from Arcade Street to 

pole 50 and pole 60 to pole 68, which will be cold-planed, and repaved. Secondary roads include Elston 

Avenue and Sherry Street. Mr. Luchini added that if the bid comes in favorable they will add more roads 

to the list. Selectman Paulhus asked if there were any sidewalks in the plans for repair. Mr. Luchini replied 

that the voters approved $25,000 for sidewalks, and he does his best to stick as close to the budget as 

possible, and if there is any money left over from Chapter 90, it can be used for sidewalks. He noted that 

he does have a long list of sidewalks and unfortunately, they typically get through about 7 spots a year. He 

noted that they are at the closing sections of a Complete Streets program to address sections of Linwood 

Avenue, and whatever is not addressed the Town will take care of. Selectman Begin asked if sewer upgrades 

were a possibility for those roads that are full reclamation. Mr. Luchini replied that the process is to make 

sure there are no plans from Whitinsville Water, Eversource or anyone else that may need to dig up a road 

within the next 5 years.  

    

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT/None 

 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: Selectman Begin gave praise to Town Manager Gaudette on a job well 

done at the Spring Annual Town Meeting. He stated this was his first time attending town meeting and he 

felt the manager did a great job. Selectman Melia asked if the school article that was passed over would 

be an issue. Town Manager Gaudette explained that we are in planning for all of our buildings that are 

becoming vacant. He explained that it is obviously more costly to have a building longer, which also affects 

public safety due to vandalism, insurance and other concerns. He plans to get more information to give to 

the public to move forward.  

     

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None   

 
CORRESPONDENCE/None  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 

A motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Paulhus to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Begin, Collins, 

Paulhus and Melia.  

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:50 PM 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Brian Paulhus, Clerk  

 

 

/mjc 

  



Board of Selectmen 

  May 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

4 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

May 8, 2023 

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

A. 1) March 13, 2023  

-Copy of March 13, 2023 meeting minutes 

 

2) March 13, 2023 [Exec. Sess.]   

Omitted  

 

3) March 27, 2023  

-Copy of March 27, 2023 meeting minutes  

 

4) April 10, 2023   

-Copy of April 10, 2023 meeting minutes 

 

5) May 2, 2023 [SATM] 

-Copy of May 2, 2023 [SATM] minutes  

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING  

  

III. APPOINTMENTS: B. Playground & Recreation Commission/Vote to appoint: 1) Michael 

Haslam [Eff. Immediately] 2) Karen Rogers [Eff. 7/1/23]/Present: Mike Dempsey  

 -Copy of memorandum recommending appointments 

 -Copy of talent bank form for Michael Haslam 

 -Copy of talent bank form for Karen Rogers 

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

V. DECISIONS: 

C. Blue Zone Integrated Fitness Studio, 102 Church Street/Request to use Memorial Park 

on Saturday, May 13, 2023 from 11 AM to 12 PM for a one-hour outdoor yoga class [Rain 

date: May 20, 2023]/Present: Laura Polymeros 

 -Copy of Memorial Park Request Form 

 -Copy of email from the Chief of Police confirming there are no concerns  

 

D. Mandatory Water Restriction for non-essential outdoor water use beginning May 1, 2023 

to September 30, 2023 during the hours of 9 AM to 5 PM 

 -Copy of email regarding the Mandatory Water Restriction 

 -Copy of Water Permit  

 -Copy map of drought status 

 -Copy of water use restrictions map 

 

E. 2023 Junk Dealers License Renewal/Pedro Martel III DBA Junk in the Trunk – Vote to 

renew 

 -Copy of listing of Junk Dealers 

 



Board of Selectmen 

  May 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

5 

VI. DISCUSSIONS: 

 F. Upcoming Road Projects in Northbridge/Present: Jamie Luchini, DPW Director 

 -Copy of memorandum regarding upcoming road projects  

 -Copy of road cost estimates  

  

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT/None 

 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS/No documentation 

  

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None  

 

X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 



B.













C.1.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxx



PART‐TIME POSITION OPENING 
TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

LIBRARY ASSISTANT 
 

The Town of Northbridge seeks candidates to fill a part‐time Library Assistant position at Whitinsville Social Library.   
 
Candidates must be available to fill the closing shifts on Mondays and Wednesdays (3‐8:15), all day Friday (9:45‐5:15) 
and at least two Saturdays (9:45‐2:15) a month. This is a public facing position at our circulation desk. This is a non‐
benefited position. 
 
Primary responsibilities: 

 Providing direct customer service in person, via telephone and email to people of all ages, abilities and 
backgrounds from the community. 

 Promoting Whitinsville Social Library services including physical and electronic resources. 

 Demonstrating to patrons how to use self‐service options including using their online library account, library 
apps, personal computers, printing, registering for events and museum passes, downloading e‐books & e‐
audiobooks, and other library resources. 
 

The work is detail orientated and can be fast‐paced.  Job involves standing, walking, or using stairs for the entire shift. 
Other responsibilities may be assigned. 
 
Required Qualifications:  

 Experience in providing excellent customer service and working with the public in‐person and via telephone. 

 Excellent  with  personal  computers  including  Microsoft  Office,  online  searching,  Internet/browsers  including 
Chrome, G‐Suite and email, printers, smartphones, and copy machines. 

 Detail oriented with an ability to use alpha‐numeric organizational schemes (Dewey Decimal Classification). 

 Must  be  able  to  lift  a minimum of  30  pounds,  stand  for  up  to  5  hours,  repeatedly  bend  and  stoop  to  reach 
shelves, and work under very noisy conditions for up to 1 hour. 

 Ability to pass a criminal records (CORI) check and pre‐employment physical. 

 High School Diploma or equivalency. 
 
Preferred Qualifications:  

 Previous working or volunteer experience in a library and/or current MLIS student. 

 Experience with Evergreen ILS and/or the CWMARS online public access catalog. 

 Experience with downloadable and streaming media, apps, and e‐reader devices. 

 Current public library patron and supporter. 

 Excellent availability. 

 Experience with arts & crafts, marketing, event planning, or social media management. 
 
Starting pay is $15.30 per hour. 
 

Internal/External Applicants:  
To be considered for this position, submit a cover letter and Town of Northbridge Application to the Library Director at 

rsasseville@cwmars.org. Resumes are not required but accepted. Email applications are greatly preferred. 
 

Review of applications will commence immediately and will continue until a suitable candidate is determined.  
 

The Town of Northbridge is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer. 

C.2.







Kayleigh Labrecque July 23, 2023
1697 Providence Rd
Northbridge, MA, 01534

Rebecca Sasseville, Library Director
Whitinsville Social Library
17 Church St
Whitinsville, MA 01588

Dear Mrs. Sasseville,

Thank you for the opportunity to apply for the Senior Library Assistant position at the
Whitinsville Social Library. After reviewing the job description, I believe I am capable of
handling the increased responsibilities and expectations that come with a Senior position. In fact,
I am eager to learn new skills and provide valuable resources to the community.

My previous history in electronics, as shown in my resume, enabled me to become proficient in
most major word processors and browsers. I also built very limited customer service skills while
volunteering. While working as a Junior Library Assistant, I was able to build on this foundation
and learn competency in Evergreen. I was also able to familiarize myself with the normal
working atmosphere and regular patrons in the library. With this in mind, I believe I can bring a
fresh perspective to the current services and programming being offered, to the library’s benefit.
In addition, my current schedule is flexible and I am able to accomodate any shifts that would
not be conviennent for the current staff.

In regards to my education, I’ve completed one year of Music Technology at Franklin Pierce
University. Going forward I plan to study Human Services at Quinsigamond Community
College. Eventually, it is my goal to complete an MLIS program. Moving to this new role would
enable me to make significant progress toward this goal and provide valuable experience in the
field.

After reviewing my resume, I hope you will agree that I am the type of hard-working and
creative candidate you are looking for. I would welcome the opportunity to further discuss this
position with you. If you have questions or would like to schedule an interview, please contact
me by phone at 774-462-1405 or by e-mail at kayleighrl02@gmail.com.

Thank you for your time and consideration. I look forward to hearing from you soon.

Sincerely,

Kayleigh Labrecque
Enclosure

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxx



Kayleigh Labrecque
774-462-1405 │kayleighrl02@gmail.com

Objective

Seeking a position where my skills will be effectively utilized to my employer’s benefit and
further my knowledge of librarianship.

Education
Blackstone Valley Regional Vocational Technical High School │Electronics & Engineering
65 Pleasant Street, Upton, MA 01568

Franklin Pierce University │Music Technology
40 University Drive, Rindge, NH 03461

Career-Technical Skills & Experience
Electronics Vocational Studies and Soft Skills

● Excellent computer skills (Microsoft Office, Google Suite, printing and copying, etc.)
● Productive communication skills in a team setting
● Experienced in project planning and technical writing
● Effective short-term and long-term time management
● Strong diagnostic and problem-solving skills

Work Experience

Junior Library Assistant, Whitinsville Social Library, Northbridge, MA │ December 2022 to
present

● Perform regular circulation desk duties (checking materials in and out, placing holds,
etc.)

● Assisted patrons with navigating the library’s services
● Assistâtes processing new materials by covering and shelving

Volunteer Experience

Assistant Teacher, Dance Sensation Dance Studio Inc., Douglas, MA│September 2016 to June 2018
● Taught fine motor skills and teamwork to disabled children
● Helped organize and run weekly classes
● Accommodated students’ needs and created a welcoming atmosphere

Volunteer, Kitty Rescue, Rindge, NH │ April 9, 2022 to May 16, 2022
● Volunteered 2-3 hours a week
● General upkeep and cat care tasks (cleaning, refilling food etc.)

Achievements & Activities
● Dance Sensation Dance Studio dancer │September 2005 to February 2020

○ Volunteered for community performances
● BVT Chorus member │August 2017 to Present

○ Responsible for selling merchandise for club fundraising
● BVT Robotics Team │January 2018 to June 2019
● Superintendent Commendation List (High Honors) in 2017, 2018, and 2019

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text



C.3.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text







C.4.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text











D.1.







D.2-4



D.5.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





D.6

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx





D.7.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx





E.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx



NORTHBRIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
FEASIBILITY REPORT PRESENTATION

       Prepared for the Northbridge 
Board of Selectmen

AUGUST 14, 2023

F.



STUDY GOALS

• Broaden understanding of redevelopment options 

• Build support for reuse or redevelopment

• Help spread the word on property availability

• Provide background on building & site conditions  

• Provide planning and design ideas on reutilization

• Provide design guidelines for redevelopment 



THE REPORT’S TABLE OF CONTENTS

01. 
02.
03. 
04. 
05.
06.
 
07. 
08.
09.
10.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS ������3
STUDY BACKGROUND ����������������������������������������������������6
SITE & BUILDING ASSESSMENT ��������������������������������������15
MARKET STUDY ��������������������������������������������������������������27
BUILDING REUTILIZATION OPTIONS ������������������������������30
SITE REUTILIZATION OPTIONS MAINTAINING SCHOOL 
ADMINISTRATION USES �������������������������������������������������39
EXPANDED SITE REUTILIZATION OPTIONS ��������������������50
COMMUNITY MEETING INPUT ��������������������������������������58
NEXT STEPS ���������������������������������������������������������������������60
DESIGN GUIDELINES ������������������������������������������������������61



STUDY AREA:  AERIAL IN CONTEXT

Development options should be seen within the larger town center context.

C
R

O
SS

 S
T

C
R

O
SS

 S
T

CHURCH ST

CHURCH ST

PLEASANT ST

PLEASANT ST



STUDY AREA: CONTEXT AND BUILDING PHOTOGRAPHS

The Town Center has attractive commerical and residential buildings.

The Northbridge School itself, inside and outside, is lacking in charm.



STUDY AREA: FIRST FLOOR PLAN
The initial study area didn’t extend out to Linwood, and included only the school and 

the land immediately around it.  The study area was expanded out to Linwood Ave.

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft



MARKET STUDY: RESIDENTIAL 

A market study suggested that residential - duplexes, townhouses and apartments - were 

the best redevelopment opportunities, but commercial and institutional could be viable.



RESIDENTIAL ADAPTIVE REUSE:  DEMOLITION & NEW CONSTRUCTION
Partial demolition and reuse of the building is an option - so that interiors have more 

light and the building mass is reduced.

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft



  



























































































RESIDENTIAL ADAPTIVE REUSE:  DEMOLITION & NEW CONSTRUCTION
The viability of reuse is unlikely, but not out of the question.

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft













     



























 
















 







 









NON-RESIDENTIAL ADAPTIVE REUSE:  DEMOLITION & NEW CONSTRUCTION
It is possible that a buyer would reutilize the entire building removing non bearing 

interior walls within the column and beam structure. 

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft



EXAMPLES OF HOUSING TYPES

(1) Townhouses    (2) Apartment Buildings

(3) Duplexes        (4) Large Houses with Multiple Apts



DEMOLITION AND NEW CONSTRUCTION: TOWNHOUSES
29 townhouses have garages and 2 or 3 bedrooms suitable for families, young adults 

or empty nesters.  This is one of many options the report explores.

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft

   



























 









DEMOLITION AND NEW CONSTRUCTION: SENIOR CENTER
The Senior Center Director suggested this site for a 15,000 SF COA. PACE (Program 

of All-inclusive Care) may be a private sector alternative.

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft



EXPANDED SITE: SENIOR CENTER & SENIOR HOUSING
If the site were expanded out to Linwood Avenue there would be space for senior 

housing in addition to a senior center (15,000 SF Center shown).

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft



EXPANDED SITE: TOWNHOUSES AND BELOW GRADE PARKING
Apartment buildings near the corner of Linwood and Cross could pick up the scale of 

the old houses with parking located below.  Townhouses could be located further back.

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft

NOTE: driveways shown have
entries to below grade parking



DEMOLITION AND A NEW PUBLIC PARK
Community members expressed interest in the existing school being demolished and 

replaced with a public park for everyone in the neighborhood to enjoy.

CROSS ST

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV
E

10 ft

25 ft 100 ft

50 ft



PHOTOS OF COMMUNITY MEETINGS



NORTHBRIDGE NEXT STEPS

Set priorities: 

• Consider redevelopment of the entire 118,137 sq. ft. site.

• Pursue redevelopment by private entities thru RFP process.

- Replacement of unattractive building
- Adding needed housing
- Providing a place for businesses or service providers
- Creating open space for recreation
- Supporting downtown revitalization
- Reinforcing the character of Linwood Avenue
- Weaving the site into the surrounding neighborhood
- Adding to town revenues through sales and taxes



NORTHBRIDGE NEXT STEPS CONTINUED

• Establish Design Guidelines.

• Solicit and evaluate proposals per State regs - Chapter 30B.

• Consider whether sale or retention is in Town’s best interest.

    - Retain land / building to meet current / future needs

    - Use as open space, short or long term

• Continue the civic dialog.

• Town Meeting to make decision on the future of the property.



G.













NTM License Slips
Row 2

Current Status On Agenda for 8.14.23

Done

License ID: NTM#16163

License Type: One-day Wine and Malt License

Description: Valley Bag Toss - Outdoor event at the Community Plaza at the Whitin Mill, 50
Douglas Road, on Saturday, October 14, 2023 from 12 PM - 5 PM. Rain date:
October 15, 2023. Alcohol to be stored in the Kitchen of the Whitin Mill and served on
the Community Plaza.

Business: Open Sky Community Services

Applicant: Catherine Twing-Irish

Address: 50 Douglas Road

Approval Target 08/09/23

Slip Started on: 08/01/23 3:36 PM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:



CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A

HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

Approved subject to any and all food vendors obtaining their
necessary One-Day Food Permits to provide food at this event.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:



H.1.







NTM License Slips
Row 3

Current Status On Agenda for 8.14.23

Done

License ID: NTM#16162

License Type: One-day Wine and Malt License

Description: Annual Church Picnic event - Outdoors on August 20, 2023 from 12 PM - 6 PM at
315 Church Street. Alcohol to be stored and served under a tent on the lawn

Business: Armenian Church Picnic

Applicant: Joanne Khoury

Address: 315 Church Street

Approval Target

Slip Started on: 08/01/23 10:56 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:



CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A

HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

The Armenian church possesses an Annual Food Permit and is
inspected by this office.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:



H.2.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
August 11, 2023 10:20 AM

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
August 14, 2023

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text







I.







 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
WARRANT FOR FALL ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE                          
TRANSACTION OF TOWN BUSINESS 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2023 - 7:00 P.M. 
 

DRAFT #4 – 8.9.23 
WORCESTER, ss: 
To any Constable of the Town of Northbridge in said County, 
GREETINGS: 
In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are hereby directed to notify the Inhabitants of 
the Town of Northbridge, qualified to vote in Town elections and Town affairs, to meet in the Northbridge 
Middle School, on Linwood Avenue, in Whitinsville, in said Northbridge, Massachusetts, on Tuesday, 
October 24, 2023 at 7:00 o'clock P.M., then and there to act on the following articles: 
 
 
ARTICLE 1: (Board of Selectmen)  
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from available funds in the Treasury 
and/or transfer from the unexpended appropriated funds of one or more of the departments of the Town 
various sums of money and authorize the payment of prior year bills; or take any other action relative 
thereto.    
 
ARTICLE 2: (Board of Selectmen)  
To see if the Town will vote to amend the votes taken under Article 3 of the 2023 Spring Session of the 
Annual Town Meeting (May 2, 2023), appropriations and transfers under the Omnibus Budget Article, to 
raise and appropriate, and/or to transfer from available funds in the Treasury and/or the Health Insurance 
Stabilization Fund to supplement appropriations under the Omnibus Budget Article; or take any other 
action relative thereto. 
 
Notes:   
Line 39:  Current deficit is $9,558  
Line 42:  Current deficit is $49,463 
 
GL/PL Insurance say $70K (additional appropriations) – fund with additional State Aid (Ch. 70) 
 
MVP Grant Award – 25% match of $100,000 (fund with Free Cash) 
 
Quaker Street Landfill – SLR July $128,200, SLR Remainder of Costs is say $360K (fund with Free 
Cash/other Transfers) 
 
Water & Sewer Indirect Costs Update (additional appropriations) 
 
 
ARTICLE 3: (Bylaw Review Committee)  
To see if the Town will vote to approve the grammatical and stylistic amendments to the Code of 
Northbridge (Bylaws) in accordance with the final report of the Bylaw Review Committee appointed in 
2021 pursuant to Section 8-9(b) of the Home Rule Charter, said report being on file with the Town Clerk; 
or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 4: (Bylaw Review Committee)  
To see if the Town will vote to approve the substantive amendments to the Code of the Town of 
Northbridge (Bylaws) in accordance with the final report of the Bylaw Review Committee appointed in 
2021 pursuant to Section 8-9(b) of the Home Rule Charter, said report being on file with the Town Clerk; 
or take any other action relative thereto.  
 
ARTICLE 5: (Conservation Commission)  
Note:   Amendment to the Code of the Town of Northbridge (Bylaws) for Conservation Land Use 
Regulations… 
 
 

J.



 
And you are directed to serve this warrant by posting attested copies thereof at the Whitinsville Post 
Office and the Town Hall Annex, in Whitinsville, all in Precinct 1; the NCTV Cable Studio and the 
Northbridge Post Office, in Northbridge, all in Precinct 2; the Town Clerk's Office and 1Quickstop, in 
Whitinsville, all in Precinct 3; the Veterans Hall (875 Hill Street), in Whitinsville, in Precinct 4; and Shaw’s, 
in Whitinsville, in Precinct 5; twenty-eight (28) days at least before the time and place of meeting 
aforesaid. 
 
 
WHEREOF FAIL NOT, and make due return of the warrant, with your doings thereon, to the Town Clerk 
at the time and place of said meeting.  GIVEN under our hand this 11th day of September in the year Two 
Thousand Twenty-three.      
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SELECTMEN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
 

      
Russell D. Collins, Chairman 

 
 
              
Thomas J. Melia     Charles Ampagoomian, Jr.       
  

              
Brian M. Paulhus     Thomas Begin 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WORCESTER, SS Northbridge                                                                  Date:   
 
By virtue of this warrant I have this day notified the inhabitants of the Town of Northbridge qualified to 
vote in town elections and town affairs to meet at the time and place and for the purpose stated in said 
warrant by posting attested copies thereof as within directed. 
 
 
 
      
Constable, Town of Northbridge 



K.



L.



M.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text



NTM License Slips
Row 1

Current Status On Agenda for 8.14.23

Done

License ID: NTM#16164

License Type: Common Victualler's License

Description: Transfer of license from The Donut Shop dba Jumbo Donuts to RASU Jumbo Donut
Shop LLC dba Jumbo Donut - nonalcoholic common victuallers license.

Business: RASU Jumbo Donut Shop, LLC dba Jumbo Donut

Applicant: Anita Mathema

Address: 1115 Providence Road, Whitinsville

Approval Target

Slip Started on: 08/02/23 10:03 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -Not Applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments: Subject to a fire inspection

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:



CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A

HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

Applicant is in the process of obtaining a food permit with this office.
A few minor violations need to be addressed prior to release of food
permit.
Completed as of 8/10/23

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text


	C.1. Mayer Appointment Letter from TM.pdf
	Fast color scan to a PDF file_49.pdf
	Page 1





